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Independent Auditor's Report
To the shareholders of
Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Sekunjalo Technology Solutions
Limited set out on pages 8 to 57, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 31 August
2016, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of
cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’' responsibility for the financial statements

The company's directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
and separate financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa and for such internal confrol as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that
are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and separate financial statements based

on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due fo fraud or
error. In making thase risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated and separate financial position of Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited as at 31
August 2016, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and consolidated and separate
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reparting Standards, and
the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

Audit - Tax -Advisory .
Grant Thomton Cape Incorporated Registration No. 2010/016204/21 is a member of Grant Thornlon South Africa which in fum is a member of Grant Thomton Intemational Ltd.




Other matier

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention fo the fact that supptementary information set out on
pages 58 to 66 doss nat form part of the financial statements and is presented as additional information.
We have not audiied these schedules, accordingly we do not express an opinion on tham.

Other reporis reguired by the Companies Act
As part of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements for the year ended 31 August
2016, we have read the Directors' Report for the purpose of identifying whether there are material
_inconsistencies between this report and the audited consoiidated and separate financiai statemenis. The
Direciors' Report is the responsibitity of the directors. Based on reading the Directors' Report we have not
identified material inconsistencies batweean this report and the audited consolidated and separaie financial
stafements. However, we have not audited the Directors' Report and accordingly do not express an
opinien thereon.
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Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registered Auditors

B. Van der Walt

Director

Chartered Accountant (SA)
Registered Auditor

27 January 2017

Cape Town
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Directors’ Responsibilities and Approval

The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act of Seuth Africa, fo maintain adaquate acceunting records and are
rasponsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this
report. it is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the group as
at the end of the financial year and the results of its operaticns and cash flows for the peried then ended, in conformity wiih
International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opiniorn on the
annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are
based upen appropriate accounting policies conslstently applied and supperted by reasonable and prudent judgementis and
estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
group and placs cansiderable importance on maintaining & strong control environment. To enable the directors to mest
these responsibilities, the hoard of directors sets standards for internal contral aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a
cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibitities within a clearly defined framewaorls,
effective accounting procedures and adequate segragalion of duties to ensure an acceptabla level of risk. These controls
are monitored throughout the group and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the
group's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumslances is above reproach. The focus of risk
management in the group Is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the group.
While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the group endeavours to minimise i by ensuring that appropriate
infrasiructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and
constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
infernal control provides reasonable assurance that the financiat records may be reliad on for the preparation of the annual
financial statements. However, any system of intemnal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss,

The directors have reviewed the group's cash flow forecast for the year fo 31 August 2017 and, in the light of this review
and the current financlal position, they are satisfied that the group has or has access lo adeguate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independantly auditing and reporting on the company's financial statements, The
financial statements have been examined by the company's external audilors and their report is presented on pages 3 to 4.

The finangial staternents set cut on pages 8 o 55, which have been prepared on the going concemn basis, ware approved
by the board of directers on 27 January 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:
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Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited

(Registration number 1996/014461/06)
Annuat Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2016

Directors' Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of Sekunjalo Technology Solutions
Limited and the group for the year ended 31 August 2016.

1. Nature of business

Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited is an investment entity incorporated in South Africa owning subsidiaries involved in
information technology and telecommunications. The Group operales in South Africa.

There have been no material changes to the nature of the group's business from the prior year.
2. Review of financial results and activities

The consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporiing
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa. The accounting policies have been applied consistently
campared to the prior year,

Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the group are set out in these consalidated annual
financial statements.

3. Share capital

There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital during the year under review.

4, Dividends

The company's dividend policy is to consider an interim and a final dividend in respect of each financial year. At its discretion,
the board of directors may consider a special dividend, where appropriate, Depending on the perceived need to retain funds for
expansion or operating purposes, the board of directors may pass on the payment of dividends.

Given the current state of the global economic environment, the board of directors believes that it would be more appropriate
for the group to conserve cash and maintain adequate debt headroom to ensure that the group is best placed to withstand any
prolonged adverse economic conditions. Therefore the board of direclors has resolved not to declare a dividend for the
financial year ended 31 August 2016.

5. Directorate

The directors in office al the date of this report are as follows:

Directors Designation

A Wolmarans Execuiive Resigned - 31 August 2016
C Ah Sing Non-executive

K Abdulia Chairman and Executive

C F Hendricks Non-executive

T Hove Non-executive

A B Amod Non-executive

N Gamieldien Executive

6. Interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements

Details of material interests in subsidiary companies, associates and joint arrangements are presented in the consolidated
annual financial statements in notes 6, 7 and 8.

7. Holding company

The group's holding company is African Equity Empowerment Investments Limited. African Equity Empowerment Investments
Limited is incorporated in South Africa, a company listed on the JSE.

8. Events after the reporting period

The directors are not aware of any other material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.
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Directors’ Report

9. Going concern

The directors believe that the group and company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the
foreseeable future and accordingly the consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The directors have satisfied themselves that the group is in a sound financial posilion and that il has access to sufficient
borrowing facilities to meet iis foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are not aware of any new material changes that
may adversely impact the group. The directors are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regutatory
requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the group.

10.  Auditors
The appeintment of auditors will be reviewed at the next annual general meeting.
11. Secretary

The company secretary is Ms. C F Hendricks.

Fostal address
P.O. Box 181
Cape Town
8000

Business address
Quay 7 East Pier
Victoria and Alfred
Waterfront
Cape Town
8001




Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited
(Registration number 1996/014461/06)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2016

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2016

Group Company
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2,494 377 3,179,883 6,915 9,034
Goodwill 4 17,302,179 17,302,179 - -
Intangible assets 5 2,180,746 2,067,549 - -
Investmentis in subsidiaries & - - 301,782,202 78,842 379
Investment in joint venture 7 32,669 32,669 - -
Investmenis in associate 8 319,272 8,797 30 30
Loans to group companies g 2,092,658 3,765,465 30,799 2,680,779
Loans to shareholders - 36,427 - -
Other financial assets 10 1,129,373 3,484,996 - 2,485,996
Deferred tax 11 11,086,549 3,703,699 - -
36,617,821 33,581,564 301,819,946 83,542,218
Current Assets
Inventories 12 - 3,084,606 - -
Trade and other receivables 13 32,412,131 58,998,757 6,167,135 3,865,483
Other financial assets 10 3,581,933 2,499 2,757,553 -
Current tax receivable 969,220 179,788 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 14 33,561,766 22,185,700 112,738 633,491
70,525,050 84,451,250 9,037,426 4,498,974
Total Assets 107,142,871 118,032,814 310,857,372 88,041,192
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Attributable to Holders of Parent
Share capital 15 168,828,087 168,828,087 168,828,087 168,828,087
Retained income (169,577,318)  {198,887,324) 16,193,475 (160,688,894)
(749,231) (30,059,237) 185,021,562 8,139,193
Non-controlling interest 17,852 345 15,967,166 - -
17,103,114 {14,092,071) 185,021,562 8,139,193
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Loans from group companies 9 87,728,455 77,055,456 57,940,921 77,318,096
Other financial liabilities 16 277,431 281,760 - -
Operating lease liability 528,044 519,514 - -
Ceferred tax 1 - - 57,059,168 2,207,630
68,534,930 77,856,730 125,000,089 79,525,726
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 12,776,617 33,471,307 805,018 312,842
Loans from shareholders 3,200 6,650 - -
Deferred income 18 1,186,060 10,474,141 - -
Current tax payable 270,132 884,601 - -
Provisions 19 7,268,818 9,431,456 33,703 63,331
21,504,827 54,268,155 835721 376,273
Total Liabilities 90,039,757 132,124,885 125,835,810 79,901,999
Total Equity and Liabilities 107,142,871 118,032,814 310,857,372 88,041,192
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Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited

(Registration number 1996/014461/06)

Annual Financiat Statements for the year ended 31 August 2016

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Group Company

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Continuing operations
Revenue 20 215,366,748 222,619,638 6,654,969 7,028,499
Cost of sales (148,454 091) (153,337,319} - -
Gross profit 66,912,657 69,282,319 6,654,969 7,028,499
Other income 3,385,300 2,825,993 3,069,834 978,197
Operating expenses (42,839,327) (47,301,315} (6,551,504) (5,334,298)
Operating profit 21 27,458,630 24,806,997 3,173,299 2,672,400
investment revenue 22 3,431,211 1,812,486 5,671,976 5,366,260
Fair value adjustments 23 14,470 28,203 231,894,655 4,145,318
Income from equity accounted investments 310,475 8,767 - -
Profit on sale of subsidiaries 24 11,168,929 - - -
Finahce costs 25 (8,413,076} (8,032,071}  {8,206,023) (7,626,969)
Profit before taxation 33,970,639 18,624,382 231,733,907 4,557,009
Taxation 26 835,468 (6,667,651) (54,851,538} 482,384
Profit from continuing operafions 34,806,107 11,956,731 176,882,369 5,039,393
Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations 27 (1,488,645) - - -
Profit for the year 33,317,462 11,956,731 176,882,369 5,039,393
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 33,317,462 11,956,731 176,882,369 5,039,393
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent 29,310,006 7,538,261 176,882,369 5,039,393
Non-controlling interest 4,007,456 4,417 470 - -

33,317,462 14,956,731 176,882,369 5,039,393
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent 29,310,006 7.539,261 176,882,369 5,039,383
Non-controlling interest 4,007,456 4417470 - -

33,317,462 11,956,731 176,882,369 5,039,393
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Share capital Share premium  Total share Retait
capital incos

Figures in Rand
Group
Balance at 01 September 2014 808,607 168,019,480 168,828,087 (206,42
Profit for the year - - - 7,62
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 7,53
Dividends - - -
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of company - - -
recognised directly in equity
Balance at 01 September 2015 808,607 168,019,480 168,828,087 (198,88
Profii for the year - - - 29,31
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 29,31
Dividends - - -
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of company - - -
recognised directly in equity
Balance at 31 August 2016 808,607 168,019,480 168,828,087 (169,57
Note 15 15 15
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(Registration number 1996/014461/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2016

Statement of Changes in Equity

Figures in Rand

Share capital Share premium

Retai
ncot

Total share
capital

Company
Balance at 01 September 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 01 September 2015

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 August 2018
Note

808,607 168,019,480 168,828,087 (165,7:
- - - 500
- - - 5,07
808,607 168,019,480 168,828,087 (160,6¢
- - - 176,86
- - - 176,88
808,607 168,019,480 168,828,087  16,1¢
15 15 15
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Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited

(Registration number 1996/014461/06)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2016

Statement of Cash Flows

Group Company
Figures in Rand Note(s) 20186 2015 2016 2015
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts 253,991,857 215,433,458 12,002,878 8,012,208
Cash paid (231,298,486} (201,404,960) (10,658,054)  (6,366,883)
Cash generated from operations 29 22,693,171 14,028 498 1,344,824 1,645,315
interest income (3,540,417} 1,812,486 794,250 195,011
Dividends received - - 4,277,726 5,171,249
Finance costs (2,852,309}  (8,032,071)  (8,206.,023)  (7,626,969)
Tax payment 32 (7,511,396}  (6,700,378) - -
Net cash from operating activities 8,789,049 1,108,535 (1,789,223} {615,394)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (1,120,989)  (2,145,781) - -
Sale of property, plant and eguipment 3 59,977 608,938 - 541,888
Purchase of other intangible assets 5 (1,487,687} - - -
Expenditure on product development 5 (357,196}  {1,996,572) - -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary 24 207,280 - 8,854,831 -
Movement in loans to group companies - (665,717} 1,713,917 (2,506,538)
repaid/(advanced)
Surplus funds invested with holding company - - - (647,914)
Movement in loans from group companies 6,466,325 2,399,233 (9,042,722) 3,047,958
(Purchase)/Sale of financial assets (1,209,341}  (3,424,845) - -
Net cash from investing activities 2,558,369 (5,224,744) 1,526,026 435,394
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of other financial liabilities (4,329) (185,089) - -
Movement in other financial assets - - (257,557) -
Repayment of shareholders loan 32,977 (40,160) - -
Finance lease payments - (622,031) - -
Acquisition of additional shares in joint venture - (32,669) - -
Net cash from financing activities 28,648 (879,949) {257,557) -
Total cash movement for the year 11,376,066 (4,996,158) {520,754) (180,000}
Cash at the beginning of the year 22,185,700 27,181,858 633,491 813,491
Total cash at end of the year 14 33,561,766 22,185,700 112,737 633,491
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Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited

(Registration number 1996/014461/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2016

Accounting Policies

1.  Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annuat financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and
the Companies Act of South Africa. The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, other
than ceriain financial instruments which are carried at fair value, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out
below.The annual financial statements have been presented in South African Rands.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

Underlying concepts

The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, which assumes that the Group will continue in operation
for the foreseeable future. The financial statements are prepared using the accrual accounting whereby the effects of
transactions and other events are recognised when they occur, rather than when the cash is received or paid.

Assets and liabilities and income and expenses are not offset unless specifically permitted by an accounting standard.

Changes in accounting policies are accounted for in accordance with the transitional provisions in the standard. If no such
guidance is given, they are applied retrospectively, unless it is impracticable to do so, in which case they are applied
prospectively.

Changes in accounting estimates are recognised in profit and loss in the period they occur.

Prior period errors are retrospectively restated unless it is impracticable to do so, in which case they are applied
prospectively.

1.1 Significant judgements
In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of avaitable information and the

application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these
estimates which may be material {o the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

- the fair values of financial assets and liabilities classified and accounted for in accordance with the policies set out below

- the estimation of the lives of property, plant and equipment is based on historic performance as well as expectations about
future use of and therefore requires significant degree of judgement to be applied by management. These depreciation
rates represents management's current best estimate of the useful lives of the assels.

Assets are subject to regular impairment reviews as required. Impairments are measured at the difference between the cost
{or amortised cost) of a particular asset and the current fair value or recoverable amount. Impairments are recorded in the

income statement in the period in which the occur. The group’s policy in relation to impairment testing in respect of goodwill
is detailed below.

Valuation method

An entity discounted cash flow (DCF) valuation technique is used for all unlisted investments that are held at fair value,
Pricef/earnings are not as accurate and are thus only used as a secondary review.

Application of methodology

Free cash flow {(FCF) forecasts are prepared year-by-year for a minimum of a three year period and for high-growth
companies year-by-year forecasts for a period of five to ten years are prepared.

13




Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited

(Registration numhber 1996/014461/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2016

Accounting Policies

1.1  Significant judgements {continued)
Fair value estimation

The fair value of financiai instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
The group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet dale. Discounted cash flows are used to determine fair value for the investments in subsidiary companies. The use of
discounted cash flow analysis requires the estimation of a number of significant components, including the future expected
cash flows, and the weighted average cost of capital used lo perform the discounting. Many of these factors may have a
material impact on the valuation.

Terminal value growth rates

When calculating the terminat value, growth rates in excess of the current inflation rate are not utilised. Real growth beyond
ten years is not likely, and even if likely is difficuli to forecast with any certainty. The growth rates used were between 4%
and 10% for the group.

Terminal values

When cafculating the terminal value, care is taken regarding the level of net capital investment assumed. This is assumed
to be lower than during the specific forecast for high-growth companies. For mature, stable companies net capital
investment during the specific forecast period and beyond is assumed to be the same.

Discount rates

Free cash flows are discounted at the group's weighted average cost of capital (WACG), being the weighted cast of equity
as determined using the capital asset pricing model (CAPM) and the weighted after-tax cost of debt andfor any other non-
equity form of financing. The discount rates used were between 15% and 35% within the divisions in the group.

Risk free rate

The risk free rate utilised is the yield on ten-year government bonds. These yields were obtained from the financial press at
the time of preparing the valuations. Where no ten-year SA bonds are in issue, the nearest fong term SA bond rate should
be used. The risk free rate used was in the range of 7.5% and 9.5%.

Beta

The equally weighted average of the relevant industry betas are used.

The betas are calculated over a five-year period {where possible). This is assumed to provide a fair estimate of the group's
recent market price. The beta used for the group was in the range of 0.5 and 1.5.

Market risk premiumn
A market risk premium was utilised in alt valuations. The market risk premium used was in the range of 4% and 8%.

Value of equity

The value of equity will be equal to the free cash flow value of the entity, less the balance sheet values (at the valuation
date) of debt and any other form of financing, plus cash on hand (per the balance sheetl) which is in excess of normal
working capital requirements.

Trade Receivables and Loans and Receivables

The group assesses Hs trade receivables and loans and receivables for impairment at each balance sheet date. In
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the group makes judgements as to
whether there is observable data indicating 2 measurable decrease in the estimated fuiure cash flows from a financial

asset,

The impairment for trade receivables and loans and receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss
ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that
correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the porifolio and scaled to
the estimated loss emergence period.

14




Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited
{Registration number 1996/014461/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2016

Accounting Policies

1.1 Significant judgements (continued)
Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calcutations and fair values. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is reasonably
possible that the assumptions may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material
adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill and tangible assets.

The group reviews and lests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggesi that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. In addition, goodwill is iested on an annual basis for impairment. Assets are
grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and
fiabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows
for each group of assets. Expected fulure cash flows used to determine the value in use of goodwiil and tangible assets are
inherendly uncertain and could materially change over time. They are significantly affected by a number of factors, together
with econoimic factors.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure
of these estimates of provisions are included in note 19 - Provisions.

Taxation

Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legisiation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences wili
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

The group recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income lax assets to the extent that it is probabie that the
deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax
assets requires the group lo make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future
taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws in each
jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the
group to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the balance sheet date could be impacted.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

° it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company,; and

e the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipmeni, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

item Average useful life
Plant and machinery 1-6 years
Furniture and fixtures 2 -8 years
Motor vehicles 1-6 years
Office equipment 3-5years
IT equipment 1 -3 years
Computer soflware 2 -4 years
Leasehold improvements 5- 8 years
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1.2 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. If the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each pericd is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of ancther
assel.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.3 Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the business combination aver the company's interest of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabililies.

Subsaquently goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment. Goodwilt is tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication of impairment and is not amortised.

The excess of the company’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilittes and contingent liabilities over
the cost of the business combination is immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an asset.
1.4 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when:
® it is probabie that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset wili flow to the entity;
and
e the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets which are separately acquired are initially recognised at cost, being their purchase prices afier adding any
directly attributable costs of preparing the assets to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Software development costs, which are generated internally, are measured at cost, being all directly attributable cosls
necessary to create, produce, and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management,
after taking into account any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, where applicable.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
e it is technically feasibie to complete the asset so that it witl be available for use or sale.
there is an intention to complete and use or sell i,
there is an ability to use or sell it.
it will generate probable future economic benefits.
there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and te use or sell the
asset.
s he expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured refiably.

Amattisation is calculated on the straight line method at a rate considered appropriate to reduce the book value of the
software development costs over their useful lives to their residual values.

The useful life of the billing system was assessed by management at year end. Based on the terms of the service contract to
which the intangible relates, a notice period of 1 year is required to terminate the contract. As the contract has not been
terminated, the intangible is assumed to have a carrying value of at least one more year.

Management has assessed that the useful life of the eCCR system will be 3 years.
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1.5 Investments in subsidiaries
Company annual financial statements

in the company's separate annual financial stalements, investmenis in subsidiaries are carried af {air value through profit or
loss.

The cost of an investment in a subsidiary is the aggregate of:
e the fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the company,; plus
e any costs directly atiributable 1o the purchase of the subsidiary.
The fair value of the investments in subsidiaries is determined by using discounted cash flow analysis.

Group annual financial statemenis

The Group's annual financial statements include those of the holding company, iis subsidiaries and joint ventures. The
results of the subsidiaries are included from the effective date of acquisition.

On acquisition the Group recognises the subsidiary's identifiabie assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at fair value,
except for assets classified as held-for-sale, which are recognised at fair value less costs fo sell.

1.6 Financial instruments
initial recognition

The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial assel, a financial
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial assets and financial labilities are recognised on the group's statement of financial position when the group
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The group's principal financial assets are various investments, long term loans receivable, trade and other current
receivables and bank and cash balances. The group's financial liabilities are long term interest bearing and non interest
bearing loans payable and non trade and other payables.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset if there is a legally enforceable right fo off set the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to either settle on a net basis or realise the assetl and settle the liability simultaneocusly.

Subsequent measurement

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair vaiue being included in profit or loss for the period.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective inlerest rale method, less
accumuiated impairment losses.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised directly in ecguity until the asset is disposed of or
determined to be impaired. Interest on available for sale financial assets calculated using the effective interest rate method
is recognised in profit or loss as part of other income. Dividends received on available-for-sale equity insiruments are
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income when the group's right to receive payment is established.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.
Perecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash fiows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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1.6 Financial insfruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

At each statement of financial position date the group assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, to delermine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been
impaired.

For amounts due to the group, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
and default of payments are ail considered indicators of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Loans to (from) group companies

These include loans to and from holding companies, fellow subsidiaries, subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates and are
recognised initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs.

Subsequently these loans are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment
loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent period when an increase in the loans recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of
the loan at the date of impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Loans from group companies are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value and direct transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankrupfcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments {more than 60 days overdue) are considered indicators that the frade receivable is impaired. The
allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollected, it is written off
against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against operating expenses in the income statement.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.
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1.6 Financial instruments {continued)
Trade and other payables

Frade payables are initially measured at fair value, including any transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the
acquisition of these financial jabilities, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method. Any amortisation gains or iosses on subsequent measurement are included in the calculation of net profit or loss
for the period in which the change arises, while the net profit or less for the period in which the relevant liability is
derecognised Is also adjusted.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other shart-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These
are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value. The group does not assess these financial assets for impairment at
every balance sheet date. All regular way purchases and sales are accounted for af trade date.

Bank overdraft and borrowings

Bank overdrafils and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the settfement
or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the group’s accounting policy
for borrowing costs.

1.7 Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a lability. If the amount already paid in
respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to
{recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset if, and only if, there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to seltle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

A deferred tax liabilily is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of an assel or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit {tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit witl
be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utifised. A deferred tax asset is not recognised when it
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused STC credits to the extent that it Is
probable that future taxable profit will be availabte against which the unused tax losses and unused STC credits can be

utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the assel is
realised or the liability is setlled, based on fax rates (and tax Jaws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
and of the reporting period.
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1.7 Tax (continued}
Tax expenses
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, except to
the extent that the tax arises from:
® a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income, or
e abusiness combination.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relaies to items that are
credited or charged, in the same or a different peried, to other comprehensive income.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the {ax relates to items thal are credited or
charged, in the same or a different period, direcily in equity.

1.8 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease
is classified as an operaling lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership,

Operating feases — lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a slraight-line basis over the lease term. Any contingent rents
are expensed in the period they are incurred.

1.9 Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of compietion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The cost of inventaries comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
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1.10 Impairment of assets

The group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an assel may be impaired. {f
any such indication exists, the group estimates the recoverahle amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the group aiso:

e {ests intangibie assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for impairment
annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amouni. This impairment test is performed during
the annual pericd and al the same time every period.

s tests goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individuat assel. If it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs ta sell and its value in
use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assel is reduced to ifs
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment joss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumutated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in
profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is freated as a revaluation decrease,

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not
exceed the carrying amaount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than goodwill
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation
increase.

1.11 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
e the group has a present obligation as a resuil of a past event;
o it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;

and
e  areliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settte a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the
entity settles the obligation, The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shalt be recognised and measured as a
provision.

Conlingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.
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1.12 Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
e the group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
s  the group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;
] the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
i is probable that the economic benefils associated with the transaction will flow to the group; and
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of a fransaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period.
The oulcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when ali the following conditions are satisfied:

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the group;

& the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably; and

e the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the {ransaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue shall be
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and value
added tax.

interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.

Dividends are recognised, in profit or loss, when the company’s right to receive payment has been established.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is
performed.

1.13 Cost of sales

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
invenlories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the peried in which the reversal occurs.

The reiated cost of providing services recognised as revenue in the current period is included in cost of sales.

1.14 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred,

1.15 Translation of foreign currencies

Foreignh currency transactions

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the fransaction.

At the end of the reporting period:
= foreign currency monetary ilems are translated using the closing rate;
e non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and
@ non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined.
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1.156 Translation of foreign currencies {continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from
those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous annual financial stalements are
recognised in profit or luss in the period in which they arise.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are recorded in Rands by applying fo the foreign currency amount
the exchange rale between the Rand and the foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.

1.16 Consolidation
Pasis of consolidation

The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the annual financial statements of the group and all investees which
are controlied by the group.

The Group has control of an investee when it has power over the investee; it is exposed to or has rights o variable returns from
involvement with the investee; and it has the ability to use its power over the inveslee to affect the amount of the investor's
returns.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated annual financial statements from the effective date of acquisition to
the effective dale of disposal.

Adjustments are made when necessary to the annual financia! statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those of the group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified and recognised separately from the
Group's interest therein, and are recognised within equily. Losses of subsidiaries atfributable fo non-controlling interests are
aliocated to the non-controlling interest even if this results in a debit balance being recognised for non-controlling interest.

Transactions which result in changes in ownership levels, where the Group has control of the subsidiary both before and after
the transaction are regarded as equity transactions and are recognised directly in the statement of changes in equity.

The difference between the fair value of consideration paid or received and the movement in non-controlling interest for such
transactions is recegnised in equity atlributable to the owners of the parent.

Where a subsidiary is disposed of and a non-controfling shareholding is retained, the remaining investment is measured to fair
value with the adiusiment 1o fair value recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal of the controlling
interest.
1.17 Joint arrangements
Company annuzl financial statements
Joint ventures
An investment in a joint venture is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment.
Joint operations
The group recognises the following in relation to its interests in joint operations:
o the profits accumulated from the joint venture on an equity basis as a single line item on the statement of financial
paosition.

1.18 Share capital and equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entily after deducting all of its
liabilities.
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Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

2.  New standards and interpretations

There are no IFRS's or IFRIC interpretalions that are effective for the first time for the financial year that have a material
irmpact on the company.

2.1 Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods will have no material
impact on the financial statements of the company.

Standard Details of Amendment Annual periods beginning on or after
IFRS 5 Annual Improvemeants 2012 — 2014 1 July 2016

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and | Cycle: Amends IFRS 5 to clarify that

Discontinued Operations when an entity reclassifies an asset (or

disposal group) directly from being held
for sale lo being held for distribution {or
vice-versa), the accounting guidance in
paragraphs 27-29 of IFRS 5 does not
apply. The amendments aiso state that
when an entity determines that the
asset {or disposal group} is no longer
available for immediatle distribution or
that the distribution is no ionger highly
probable, it shouid cease held-for-
distribution accounting and apply the
guidance in paragraphs 27-29

IFRS 7 Annual iImprovements 2012 - 2014 1 July 2016
Financial Instruments: Disclosures Cycle: The amendments provide
additionai guidance to help entities
identify the circumstances under which
a servicing contract is considered {o be
‘continuing involvement’ for the
purpases of applying the disclosure
reguirements in paragraphs 42E - 42H
of {IFRS 7. Such circumstances
commonly arise when, for example, the
servicing fee is dependent on the
amount or turning of the cash flows
collected from the transferred financial
asset or when a fixed fee is not paid in
fult due to non-performance of that
asset.

Annual Improvements 2012 — 2014
Cycle: These amendments clarify that
the additional disclosure required by the
recent amendments to IFRS 7
Disclosure--Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities is not
specifically required for all interim
pericds. However, the additional
disclosure is required to be given in
condensed interim financial statements
that are prepared in accordance with
1AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting
when its inclusion would be necessary
in order to meet the general principles
of IAS 34.
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Group Company

Figures in Rand 2016 2015 2016 2015
2.  New standards and interpretations (confinued)
iIFRS & IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014Y {1 January 2018
Financial Instruments replaces |IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement’
IFRS 10 Amendments to address an 1 January 2016
Consolidated Financial Statemenis acknowledged inconsistency between

the requirements in [IFRS 10
'‘Consolidated Financial Statements' and
those in IAS 28 (2011) 'Investments in
Associates' in dealing with the sale or
contribution of a subsidiary
Amendments confirming that the IFRS
10.4(a) consolidation exemption is also
available to parent entities which are
subsidiaries of investment entities
where the investment entity measures
its investments at fair value in terms of
IFRS 10.31

Amendments modifying IFRS 10.32 to
state that the consolidation requirement
only applies to subsidiaries who are not
themselves investment entities and
whose main purpose is fo provide
services which relate to the investment
entity’s investment activities.
Amendments providing relief to non-
investment entily investors in
associates or joint ventures that are
investment entities by allowing the non-
investment entity investor to retain,
when applying the equity method, the
fair value measurement appiied by the
investment entity associates or joint
ventures to their interests in

subsidiaries.
IFRS 11 Amendments to provide guidance on 1 January 2016
Joint arrangements the accounting for the acquisition of an

interest in a joint operation in which the
activity of the joint operation constitutes

a business.
IFRS 15 New guidance on recognition of 1 January 2018
Revenue from Contracts with revenue that requires recognition of
Customers revenue in a manner that depicts the

transfer of goods or services to
customers at an amount that reflecis
the consideration the entity expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those
goods or services.
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Group

Company

Figures in Rand

2016

2015

2016

2015

2. New standards and interpretations (continued)

IFRS 16
| eases

IFRS 16 will require lessees to account
for leases "on-balance-sheet' by
recognising a right-of-use’ asset and a
lease liability.

IFRS 16 also:

- Changes the definition of a lease
-Set requiremenis on how to accoun for
the asset and liabitity, including
complexities such as non-lease
elements, variable fease payments and
option periods.

- provides exemptions for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.
- Changes the accounting for sale and
leaseback arrangements

- Largely retains IAS 17's approach to
lessor accounting.

- Introduces new disclosure
requirements.

1 January 2016

IAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments clarifying IAS 1's specified
line items on the statement(s) of profit
and loss and other comprehensive
income and the statement of financial
position can be disaggregated.
Additional requirements of how entities
should present subictals in the
statement(s) of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the
statement of financial position.
Clarification that entities have flexibility
as to the order in which they present
their notes to the financial staterents,
but also emphasising the need fo
consider fundamental principles of
comparability and understandability in
determining the order.

1 January 2016

IAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendments to prohibit the use of a
revenue-based depreciation method for
property, plant and equipment, as well
as guidance in the appiication of the
diminishing balance method for
property, plant and equipment.
Amendments specifying that because
the operation of bearer plants is similar
in nature to manufacturing, they should
he accounted for under |IAS 16 rather
than |AS 41. The produce growing on
the bearer plants will continue {o be
within the scope of IAS 41.

1 January 2016

IAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Amendments to introducing a third
option which allows entities to account
for investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates under the
equity method in their separate financial
statements.

1 January 2016
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Group Company
Figures in Rand 2016 2015 2018 2015
2.  New standards and interpretations {continued)
IAS 28 Amendments to address an 1 January 2016
Investments in Associates acknowledged inconsistency between

the requirements in IFRS 10
'Consolidated Financial Statements® and
those in 1AS 28 (2011} 'Investments in
Associales' in dealing with the sale or
cortribution of a subsidiary. In addition
[AS 28 (2011) has been amended to
clarify that when determining whether
assets that are sold or contribuled
constitute a business, an entity shall
consider whether the sale or
contribution of those assets is part of
multiple arrangements that shoutid be
accounted for as a single transaction.

1AS 38 Amendments present a rebuttable 1 January 2016
Intangible Assets presumption that a revenue-based
amortisation method for intangible
assels is inappropriate except in two
limited circumstances, as well as
provide guidance in the application of
the diminishing balance methed for
intangible assets.

There are Standards and Interpretations in issue thal are not yet effective. The directors have considered all of these

Standards and Interpretations and found none to be applicable to the business of the company a
to have a significant impact on future financial statements.

3. Property, plant and equipment

nd therefore expect none

Group 2018 2015
Cost Accumulated Carrying vaiue Cost Accumutated Carrying value
depreciation depreciation
Furniture and fixtures 926,641 {(779,639) 147,002 921,028 {697,952} 223,076
Office equipmeant 485,548 (377,614) 107,834 409,149 (328,942) 80,207
IT equipment 3,937,636 (3.043,645) 893,991 5,862,040 (4,913,842) 948,198
Computer software 1,829,524 (1,053,556) 775,968 1,521,255 {365,012) 1,156,243
L.easehold improvements 1,722,446 {1,152,964) 569,482 1,673,466 {901,307) 772,159
Total 8,901,795 (6,407,418) 2,494,377 10,386,938 (7,207,055} 3,179,883
Company 2016 2015
Cost Accumulated Carrying value Cost Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation depreciation
Furniture and fixiures 162,694 (155,779) 6,915 162,694 (153,660) 9,034
Office equipment 6.489 (6,489) - 6,489 {6,489) -
IT equipment 263,482 (263,482) - 263,482 (263,482) -
Total 432,665 {425,750) 6,915 432,665 {423,631} 9,034
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3.  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2016

Opening Additions Dispo
halance
Plant and machinery - 17,860
Furniture and fixtures 223,076 19,572
Office equipment 80,207 76,398
IT equipment 948,198 602,210 (z
Computer software 1,156,243 355,969 (4
Leasehold improvements 772,159 48,980
3,179,883 1,120,989 (7
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2015
Opening Additi
balance
Furniture and fixtures 323,638 1
Office equipment 127,647
T eguipment 962,857 62
Computer software 162,706 1,132
teasehold improvements 850,730 K1
2,427,578 2,14
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3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Company - 2016

Opening Depreciation Total

balance
Furniture and fixtures 9,034 (2,119) 6,915
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Company - 2015

Opening Depreciation Total

balance
Furniture and fixtures 11,153 (2,119 9,034
IT equipment 18 (18) -

11,171 (2,137) 9,034

A register containing the information required by Regulation 25(3) of the Companies Regulations, 2011 is available for
inspection at the registered office of the company.

4. Goodwill
Group 2016 2015
Cost Accumuiated Carrying value Cost Accumulated Carrying value
impairment impairment
Goodwill 17,682,873 (380,884) 17,302,179 17,682,873 (380,694) 17,302,179

Reconciliation of goodwill - Group - 2016

Opening Total
balance
Goodwill 17,302,179 17,302,179
Reconciliation of goodwill - Group - 2015
Opening Total
balance
Goodwild 17,302,179 17,302,179
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4.  Goodwill (continued)
Other information

Goodwill relates to the group's interest in Health System Technologies Proprietary Limited and the Saratoga Software
Proprietary Limited Group. The group performs an annual valuation for purposes of valuing the shares in its invesiments.
The valuation method is the basis for valuing the goodwill which is allocated to Health System Technologies Proprietary
Limited and the Saratoga Software Proprietary Limited Group as cash generating units (CGU}.

The value of the CGU to which the goodwill was allocated has been determined based on the value in use calculations
using management generated cash flows projections. The carrying value has been calculated to be more than the
recoverable amount and therefore no impairment has been racognised.

The following significant assumptions were used:

Number of years of cashflows: 5 - 7yoars
Terminal growth rate 4 -6%
Beta 1.5
Specific risk premium (in %): 1-5%

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to individual cash-generating units for impairment
testing as follows:

Investment in Health System Technologies R 2,157,275
Investment in Saratoga Software Group R 3,784,331
Investment in Saratoga Software subsidiaries R 11,360,573

5. Intangible assets

Group 2016 2015
Cost Accumutated Carrying value Cost Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation amoriisation
Billing system 8,818,908 (8,747,931) 70,977 8,818,908 (8,747,931} 70,877
eCCR System 2,487 439 (377,670} 2,109,769 1,996,572 - 1,996,572
Total 11,306,347 (9,125,601) 2,180,746 10,815,480 (8,747,931) 2,067,549
Reconciliation of intangible assets - Group - 2016
Opening Additions Internally Disposals Amortisation Total
balance generated through sale of
subsidiary
Patents and trademarks - 1,354,016 - (1,354,016) - -
Billing system 70,977 - - - - 70,877
eCCR System 1,998,572 133,671 357,196 - (377,670} 2,109,769
2,067,549 1,487,687 357,196 (1,354,016) (377,670} 2,180,746
Reconciliation of intangible assets - Group - 2015
Opening Internaily Total
balance generated
Billing system 70,977 - 70,977
eCCR System - 1,996,572 1,896,572
70,977 1,996,572 2,067,545

30




Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited

{Registration number 1996/01446/06}
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2016

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Group Company
Figures in Rand 2016 2015 2016 2015

5. Intangible assets (continued)
Other information
The useful life of the intangible assets were assessed by management at year end.

Based on the ferms of the service contract to which the billing system relates, a notice period of 1 year is required to
terminate the contract. As the contract has not been terminated, the billing system is assumed to have a carrying value of at
least one more year.

The aCCR system was internally developed and phase 1 was completed during the year. The product went live on 01
March 2018. Phase 2 will begin in October 2016 which entails further development of the product. Management has
assessed that the eCCR system has a usefut life of 3 years.

There are no research and development expenses recognised as an expense in the current year,

6. Investments in subsidiaries

The following table lists the entities which are cantrolled by the group, either directly or indirectly through subsidiaries.
Company

Name of company Held by % holding % holding  Carrying Carrying
2016 2015  amount 2016 amount 2015
Sekunjalo Medical Services Proprietary Limited Sekunjalo 100.00 % 100.00 % 279,196,674 59,847,525
Technology
Solutions
Limited
Saratoga Software Proprietary Limited Sekunjalo 4259 % 4259 % 22585528 10,240,023
Technology
Solutions
Limited
Wynberg Pharmaceuticals Proprietary Limited Sekunjalo - % 100.00 % - 8,854,831
Technology
Solutions
Limited
Sekunjalo Health and Medical Commodities Proprietary Sekunjalo - % 100.00 % - -
Limited Technology
Solutions
Limited

301,782,202 78,942,379

Subsidiaries for which control was lost during the year

The group disposed of its inierest in Wynberg Pharmaceuticals Proprietary Limited and Sekunjaio Health and Medical
Commodities Proprietary Limited as at 31 August 2016.
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6. Investmenis in subsidiaries {continued)
Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests

The following information is provided for subsidiaries with non-controlling interests which are material to the reporting company.
The summarised financial information is provided prior to intercompany eliminations.

Country of % Ownership interest held by

Subsidiary incorporation non-controliing interest
2018 2015
Saratoga Software Proprietary Limited Group Saratoga 42.59% 42.59%
Software
Proprietary

Limited Group

Summarised statement of financial position

Saratoga Software Proprietary
Limited Group

2016 2015
Assets
Non-current assets 13,989,625 14,196,727
Current assets 28,402,620 26,835,657
42,392,245 41,032,384
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities 805,475 801,274
Current liabilifies 12,382,519 14,208,376
13,187,994 15,009,650
Total net assets 29204251 26,022,734
Carrying amount of non-controlling interest 17,852,345 15,967,166

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Saratoga Software Proprietary
Limited Group

2016 2015
Revenue 117,324,532 112,505,977
Other income and expenses (110,664,356) (105,654,179)
Operating profit/{loss) 6,660,176 6,851,798
Profit ({loss} 6,860,176 6,851,798
Total comprehensive income 6,660,176 6,851,798
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6. Invesiments in subsidiaries {continued)

Summarised statement of cash flows

Saratoga Software Proprietary

Limited Group
2016 2015
Cash flows from operating activities 4,222 913 419,720
Cash flows from investing acfivities {279,783) (966,396)
Cash flows from financing activities (4,117,802) (2,843,547)
Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (174,772)  (3,390,223)
7. Joint arrangements
Joint ventures
The following table lists all of the joint ventures in the group:
Group
Name of company Held by % % Carrying Carrying
ownership ownership amount amount
interest interest
20186 2015 2016 2015
Exaro HST Proprietary Limited Health System 50.00 %  50.00 % 32,669 32,669
Technologies Proprietary
Limited

Exaro HST Limited is a jointly controtled entity and is incorporated and operates principally in West Africa. The investment in
the joint venture is measured using the equity method,
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7. Joint arrangements (continued)
Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
Summarised Statement of Comprehensive income Exaro HST Limited
2016 2015
Depreciation and amortisation (62,662} (62,535)

3,400,873} (921,930}
3,472,535} (984,465}
3,472,535) (984,465}
3,472,5635) {984 ,465)

Other income and expenses
Profit before tax

Profit (loss) from gontinuing operations

—_— | —

Total comprehensive income

Summarised Statement of Financial Position Exaro HST Limited
2016 2015

Assels

Nor current 2,288,209 310,659

Current

Cash and cash equivalenis 49 862 33,333

Total current assets 49862 33333

Liabilities

Current

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade payables and provisions) 7,008,240 923,929

Total current liabilities 7.008.240 923 929

Total net assets (4,670,169) (579,937)

Reconciliation of net assets to equity accounted investments in joint ventures

Interest in joint venture at percentage ownership 32,669 32,669
Carrying value of investment in joint venture 32,669 32,669
Investment at beginning of period 32,669 -
Acquisitions - 32,669
Investment at end of period 32,669 32,669

Restictions relating to joint ventures

There are currently no restrictions refating to the joint ventures.

Unrecognised losses

The company has not recognised its share of the losses of Exaro HST Limited as the company has no obligation for any losses
of the joint venture.

The tolal unrecognised losses for the current year amount to R4,670,169. The accumulated unrecognised losses for the current
period amount to R 5,250,106 (2015: R 579,937)
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8.  Investments in associate
The following table lists all of the associates in the group:
Group
Name of company % % Carrying Carrying
ownership ownership amount 2016 amount 2015
interest interest
2016 2018
Emergent Energy Proprietary Limited 33.00% 33.00% 318,272 8,797
Company
Name of company Heid hy % % Carrying Carrying
ownership ownership amount 2016 amount 2015
interest interest
2016 2015
Emergent Energy Proprietary Limited Sekunjalo 33.00%  33.00 % 30 30
Technology
Solutions
Limited
Summarised financial information of material associates
Summarised Statement of Comprehensive fncome Emergent Energy Proprietary
Limited
2016 2015
Revenue 25,010,521 18,959,801
Other income and expenses (24,069,689) (17,787,519}
Profit (loss) from continuing operations 940,832 1,172,282
Total comprehensive income 940,832 1,172,282
Summarised Statement of Financial Position Emergent Energy Proprietary
Limited
2016 2018
Assets
Non current 257,452 1,328,389
Current 8,128,359 10,559,531
Total assets 8,385,811 11,888,920
Liabilities
Non current - 970,837
Current 6,096,109 9,569,213
Total liabilities 6,096,109 10,540,050
Total net asseis 2,289,702 1,348,870

Emergent Energy Proprietary Limited is a company incorporated and operates principally in South Africa. The investment in the
associate is measured using the equity method. No active market exists for this investment. The summarised information
presented above reflects the financial statements of the asscciales.
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8. Investments in associate {continued}
Restrictions relating to associates
There are currently no restrictions relating to the associate.
9. Loans to (from} group companies
Subsidiaries
Wynberg Pharmaceuticals Proprietary Limited - - 2,067,081
Sekunjalo Medical Services Proprietary Limited - 30,799 23,698
Sekunjalo Health and Medical Commodities Proprielary - - 74,001
Limnited
Sekunjalo Health and Medical Commadities Proprietary - (212,228) (23,276)
Limited
Whynberg Pharmaceuticals Proprietary Limited - - (334,453)

: - (181,429) 1,807,051
Impairment of loans to subsidiaries - - (408,452)

(181,429) 1,398,599

The company has granted the unconditional right fo defer payment of the outstanding amount for at least 12 months. The
carrying amount of the above loans approximate their fair vaiue. As the above loans have no repayment terms, they are not

considered to be past due.

Sekunjalo Technology Soluticns Limited has agreed to subordinate loans to certain group companies until such time as the

subsidiaries assets, fairly valued, exceed their liabilities.
The subordinations are as follows:

Wynberg Pharmaceuticals Proprietary Limited -
Sekunjalo Health and Medical Commodities Proprietary -
Limited

Sekpharma Proprietary Limited -
Sekunjalo Medical Services Propriefary Limited -

15,111,248

- 2,087,081
- 74,001

- 15,111,248
30,709 23,698

15,111,248

30,799 17,276,028

Joint ventures

Digital Health Africa Proprietary Limited 8,299
The loan is unsecured, bears no interest and has no
repayment terms.

Holding company

African Equity Empowerment Investments Limited (67,610,129) (76,960,783)

The loan is unsecured with no fixed terms of
repayment. interest is charged at prime plus 3%.

African Equity Empowerment Invesiments Limited 2,084,357
The loan is unsecured and interest is charged at prime
overdraft rate. There are no fixed terms of repayment.

3,671,656

(67,610,129) (76,960,367)

(65,525,772) (73,289,127)

(67,610,129) (76,960,367)
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9. Loans to {from) group companies (continued)

The above loans payable have been subordinated in favour of other creditors, untit the assets of the group and the
company, fair valued, exceed the liabilities.The company has granted the unconditional right to defer payment of the
outstanding amount for at least 12 months.

Fellow subsidiaries

Sekpharma Proprietary Limited (118,564) 15,111,248 (118,564} 15,111,248
The loan is unsecured and has no fixed term of
repaymenl. Interest is charged at prime rate plus 3%.

Saratoga Private Equity Proprietary Limited (762) (862) - -
The loan is unsecured, bears no inlerest and repayable
on demand.
(119,326} 15,110,386 (118,564) 15,111,248
Impairment of loans to fellow subsidiaries - (15,111,248} - {15,111,248)
{119,326) {862} {118,564) -
Non-current assets 2,092,656 3,765,465 30,799 2,080,779
Non-current liabilities (67,729,455) (77,055,456) (67,940,921) (77,318,006}

(65,636,799) (73,289,991) (67,910,122) (75,227,317)

Credit quality of loans te group companies

The credit quality of loans to group companies that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to
historical information about counterparty default rates.

10. Other financial assets

At fair value through profit or loss - designated

Cadiz Life Investment Enterprise Development Fund 1,129,373 985,000 - -
The fund is an innovative new investment whereby

corporate clients can now earn the required Enterprise

Development points in terms of the DT! scorecard, and

al the same time earn real returns from a once-off

investment.

Held to maturity

Forward exchange contract 29,544 - - -
A six month forward exchange contracts was entered

into which expires on 17 February 2017 to purchase

$ 75,324.83 at an exchange rate of 14,0825,
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10. Other financial assets (continued)

i.oans and receivables

SA Components Close Corporation 2,757,553 2,499,996 2,757,553 2,499 956
The receivable is for plant and equipment sold to SA

Components and is payable in January 2017.

Kudakwashe Kandemiiri 3,468 - - -
The above loan is unsecured, bears no interest and
has no fixed repayment terms.

Afrozaar Limited (UK) 30,072 - - -
The above loan is unsecured, bears no interest and
has no fixed repayment terms

Ragna CC 760,646 - - -
The above loan is unsecured, bears no interest and
has no fixed repayment terms.

SAEBEX Proprietary Limited 650 2,499 - -
The above foan is unsecured, bears no interest and is
repayable on demand.

3,552,389 2,502,495 2,757,553 2,499,996

Total other financial assets 4,711,308 3,487,495 2,757,553 2,499,996

Non-current assets

At fair value through profit or loss - designated 1,129,373 985,000 - -
Loans and receivables - 2,499,996 - 2,499,986
1,129,373 3,484,996 - 2,499,996

Current assets

Held to maturity 29,644 - - -
Loans and receivables 3,552,389 2,499 2,757,553 -
3,581,933 2,499 2,757,553 -

4,711,306 3,487,485 2,757,653 2,499,996

The fair values of the financial assets were determined as follows:

e The fair values of listed or quoted investments are based on the quoted market price.

¢ The fair values on investments not listed or quoled are estimated using the discounted cash flow analysis.
Fair values are determined annually at balance sheet date.

For debt securities classified as at fair value through profit or loss, the maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying amount.

The group has not reclassified any financial assets from cost or amortised cost {o fair vaiue, or from fair value to cost ar
amortised cost during the current or prior year.

There were no gains or losses resalised on the disposal of held to maturity financial assets in 2016 and 2015, as all the
financial assets were disposed of at their redemption date.

The group has not reclassified any financial assels from cos! or amortised cost to fair value, or from fair value to cost or
amaortised cost during the current or prior year.
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10. Other financial assets {continued)

There were no gains or losses realised on the disposal of held to maturity financial assets in 2016 and 2015, as all the financial

assetls were disposed of at their redemption date.
11. Deferred tax

Deferred tax asset/(liability)

Provision for doubtfui debts 1,122,211 578,008 - {12,827,786)
Provisions 2,287,397 2,295,765 8,597 -
Tax losses availabte for set off against future taxable 8,110,112 - 8,110,112 -
income
Fixed asseis {1,936) - (1,938) -
Intangibles (72,748) 80,906 - -
Prepaid expenses {589,476) (833,691} - -
Income received in advance 210,990 1,682,613 - -
Invesiment in subsidiaries - - {65,175,941) 10,620,156
Total deferred tax Hability 11,066,550 3,703,599  (57,059,168)  (2,207,630)
Deferred tax liabitity (664,160} (833,692) (65,177,877) (12,827,786)
Deferred tax asset 11,730,710 4,537,291 8,118,709 10,620,156
Total net deferred tax asset {liability)} 11,066,550 3,703,599 (57,059,168) (2,207,630}
Reconciliation of deferred tax asset / (liability)
At beginning of year 3,703,600 4,378,932 (2,207,630) (2,690,014}
Increase/{Decrease) in tax losses available for set off 8,110,112 (17,128) 8,110,112 1,257,485
against future taxable income
Fixed assets - - (1,936) -
Reversing temporary difference on intangibles (153,654) (559,040) - -
Originating temporary difference on provisions (10,304) {383,380) 8,597 2,076
Fair value of subsidiary - - {75,796,087) (773,793)
Income received in advance {1,371,624) {403,591) - -
Prepayments 244 215 109,801 - (3,384)
Provision for bad debts 544 205 578,006 12,827,786 -
11,066,550 3,703,600 (57,059,168}  {2,207,630)
12. Inventories
Raw materials, components - 2,572,962 - -
Work in progress - 78,650 - -
Finished goods - 432,894 - -
- 3,084,506 - -
13. Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 24,420,742 52,268,498 6,167,135 3,859,170
Staff loans 93,192 - - -
Prepayments 2,105,271 3,895,028 - -
Deposits 724,872 504,678 - -
VAT - 6,694 - 6,313
Accrued income 5,068,054 2,323,859 - -
32,412,131 58,998,757 6,167,135 3,865,483
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13. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Of the trade receivables balance at the end of the year, R 12,740,540 (2015: R 33,001,039) is due from three of the group's
largest customers in the Information Technoiogy sector.

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to
external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates. The average credit period on
sales of merchandise goods is 30 days from anniversary date and statement date. No interest has been charged on trade
receivables for amounts outstanding longer than the credit period.

Trade and other raceivables past due but not impaired

Trade and other receivables which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 31 August 2016,
R 7,350,015 (2015: R 19,782,055) were past due but not impaired. The group has not provided for these debtors as there
has not been significant change in credit quality and the amount is still considered recoverable. The group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The receivables past due is considered more than 60 days.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired are as follows:

Health Care Segment

3 months past due - 973,213 - -
Information Technology Segment

1 month past due 5,083,140 9,908,179 - -
2 months past due 1,854,315 7,972,617 - -
3 months past due 412,560 928,046 - -

7,350,615 19,782,055 - -

Trade and other receivables impaired

As of 31 August 2016, trade and other receivables of the group of R 5,071,448 (2015: R 3,688,788) were impaired and
provided for.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credil was initially granted up to the reporting date.

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Opening balance 3,688,788 1,294 522 1,273,844 1,273,844
Provision for impairment 5,071,448 2,394,266 - -
Unused amounts reversed (3,688,788) - - -

5,071,448 3,688,788 1,273,844 1,273,844

Fair value of trade and other receivables
The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates their carrying value due to the short-term nature

14. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 63,330 628,792 54,290 616,305
Bank balances 33,498,436 21,545,808 58,448 17,186
Other cash and cash equivalents - 14,000 - -

33,561,766 22,185,700 112,738 633,491

40



Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited

{Registration number 1996/014461/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2016

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Group Company
Figures in Rand 2016 2015 2016 2015

14. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

The bank overdraft is with ABSA Bank Limited and is secured with unfimited cross suretyship between African Equity
Empowerment Investments Limited, Heallh System Technologies Proprietary Limited and Premier Fishing SA Proprietary
Limited supported by cession of loan accounts.

The following facilities are also held with ABSA Bank Limited
Primary Lending = R 5,000,000

Term Loan = R 5,800,000

Credit card = R 202,000

Forward Exchange Contracts (Nominal Value) = R 10,000,000
Foreign exchange settlement = R 5,000,000

15. Share capital

Authorised

500 000 Ordinary shares of R 0.004 each 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
300 000 000 "N" Ordinary shares of R 0.004 each 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
50 000 Redecmable Preference shares of R 0.01 each 500 500 500 500

1,202,500 1,202,500 1,202,500 1,202,500

Unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the directors in terms of a resolution of members passed at the last
annual general meeting. This authority remains in force until the next annual general meeting.

Issued

497 813 Ordinary shares of R 0.004 each 1,991 1,991 1,991 1,991
201 654 147 "N" Ordinary shares of R 0.004 each 806,616 806,616 806,616 806,616
Share premium 168,019,480 168,019,480 168,019,480 168,019,480

168,828,087 168,828,087 168,828,087 168,828,087

16. Other financial liabilities

Held at amoriised cost

Amrichprop 27 Properties Proprietary Limited 72,000 96,000 - -
This comprises of the loan granted to World Wide

Creative on 01 March 2015 by the landlord of

R108,000 in order to effect improvements to the leased

premises in Cape Town. The repayment terms are

R2,000 per month for 54 months

Loans from directors of subsidiary 205,431 185,760 - -
The loan is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

277,431 281,760 - -

Non-current liahilities
At amortised cost 277,431 281,760 - -
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17. Trade and other payables
Trade payables 4,455,449 17,242,375 675,924 184,192
Amounts received in advance 1,075,927 380,429 - -
VAT 1,699,017 3,190,524 9,997 -
Payroll accruals 1,929,295 2,133,973 - -
Accrued expenses 3,088,779 10,335,700 119,097 128,750
Operating lease payables (if immaterial) 272,787 188,306 - -
Deposits received 21,787 - - -
Other payables 233,576 - - -

12,776,617 33,471,307 805,018 312,842

The average credit period on purchases of cerlain goods is 30 - 45 days. No interest is charged on trade payables. The
group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within a reasonable time of the
credit time frame.

The fair value of trade and other payables approximates its carrying value due to its short term nature.

18. Deferred income

The deferred income relates fo licence and maintenance contracts billed to customers which will only be delivered after
financial year-end.

Current liabilities 1,186,060 10,474,141 - -

1,186,060 10,474,141 - -

419. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - Group - 2016

Opening Additions  Utilised during  Disposat of Reversed Total
balance the year subsidiary  during the year
Provision for leave pay 3,187,863 2,158,176 (1,577,827) (133,298) - 3,634,914
Provision for bonuses 2,905,540 3,376,330 {2,856,169) - (215,391) 3,210,310
Provision for warranty 3,322,053 - (782.277) - (2,116,182) 423,594
Provision for debtor claims 16,000 - (16,000) - - -

9,431,456 5,534,506 {5,232,273) (133,208)  (2,331,573) 7,268,818
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18. Provisions (continued)
Reconciliation of provisions - Group - 2018

Opening Additions  Utilised during Total

balance the year
Provision for teave pay 3,286,885 3,187,863 (3,286,885) 3,187,863
Provision for bonuses 4 846,821 2,905 540 (4,846,821} 2,905,540
Provision for warranty 4 856,915 - (1,534,862) 3,322,053
Provision for debtor claims - 16,000 - 16,000

12,990,621 6,109,403 (9,668,568} 9,431,456

Reconciliation of provisions - Company - 2016

Opening Utilised during Total

balance the year
Provision for leave pay 47,331 (16,628} 30,703
Provision for debfor claims 16,000 (16,000} -
63,331 (32,628} 30,703
Reconciliation of provisions - Company - 2015
Opening Additions  Utilised during Total
balance the year
Provision for leave pay 42,566 47,331 (42,566} 47,331
Provision for debtor claims - 16,000 - 16,000
42,566 63,331 {42,566) 63,331

The provision for leave pay is based on the amount of paid leave days owed to empioyees at the end of the year. The policy
of the company is to limit the number of leave days to twenty five. The leave pay provision is calculated in accordance with
the policy per employee.

The provision for bonuses are provided for when they accrue to employees with reference to services rendered up to the
balance sheet date. The above provision represents management's best estimate of the companies liabilities based on prior
experience.

The provision for warranty payments relates to the acquisitions of World Wide Creative Proprietary Limiled and Afrozaar
Consulting Proprietary Limited during the prior years. The above provisions were estimated resulting from the agreement
entered into,

20. Revenue

Sale of goods 20,871,291 45,484,004 - -
Rendering of services 194,495,457 177,135,634 6,654,969 7,028,499

215,366,748 222,619,638 6,654,969 7,028,499
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21. Operating profit
Operating profit for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
Operating lease charges
Premises
e Straight tine 4,708,586 4,117,112 - -
Equipment
® Straight line 2,318 - 2,318 -
4,710,904 4,117,112 2,318 -
Profit on sale of asset (13,677) 550,718 100 541 888
knpairments - 436,309 - 436,309
Impairment on loans to group companies 85,610 33,021 11,610 370,649
Lass on exchange difference 1,006,602 1,943,556 - -
Loss on sale of subsidiary (11,168,929) - - -
Amortisation on intangible assets 377,670 " - -
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1,567,355 1,216,178 2,119 2,137
Employee costs 99,447,719 74,755,720 602,672 843,230
22. [Investment revenue
Dividend revenue
Subsidiaries - Local - - 4,277,726 5,171,249
Interest revenue
Loans to group companies 826,661 563,615 532,167 182,760
Bank 422,023 653,813 262,093 12,251
interest charged on trade and other receivables 1,235,687 - - -
Other interest 946,940 595,058 - -
3,431,211 1,812,486 794,250 195,011
3,431,211 1,812,486 5,071,976 5,366,260
23. Fair value adjustments
Investment in subsidiaries - - 231,694,655 4,145,318
Other financial assets 14,470 28,203 - -
14,470 28,203 231,694,655 4,145,318
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24, Sale of businesses

Wynberg Pharmaceuticals Proprietary Limiled and Sekunjalo Heaith and Medical Commodities Proprietary Limited were sold
on 31 August 2016.

24.1 Sale of subsidiary
Carrying value of assets sold

Wynberg Pharmaceuticals Proprietary Limited

Property, pfant and equipment 37,794 - - -
Intangible assets 1,354,016 - - -
Other non-current assets 150 - - -
Inventories 2,117,199 - - -
Trade and other receivables 2,915,017 - - -
Trade and other payables (1,830,088) - - -
Tax assets / liabilities {419,986) - - -
Borrowings (6,553,635) - - -
Cash 207,280 - - -
Provisions {133,298) - - -

Sekunjalo Health and Medical Commodities
Proprietary Limited

Trade and other receivables 790 - - -
Cash 204 - - -
Trade and other payables {8,631) - - -
Total net assets sold (2.314.008) ~ N i
Net assets sold (2.314,008) N N i
Consideration received (8,854,831) - - -
Profit on sale of subsidiaries (11,168,929) - - -

Net cash outflow on disposal
Cash soid 207,280 . - -

25. Finance costs

Ultimate Shareholder 8,284,340 7,692,662 8,206,023 7,626,969
Bank 128,736 91,054 - -
Interest paid - 248,355 - -

8,413,076 8,032,0M 8,206,023 7,626,969
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26. Taxation
Major components of the tax {income} expense
Current
SA Normal tax - current period 5,880,847 5,354,220 - -
SA Normal tax - prior period 646,634 540,216 - -
6,527,481 5,894,436 - -
Deferred
Current year (7,362,949) 773,215 54,851,538 (482,384}
(835,468) 6,667,651 54,851,538 (482,384)
Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation hetween accounting profit and tax expense.
Accounting profit 33,970,639 18,624,382 231,733,907 4,557,009
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28% (2015: 28%) 9,511,779 5,214,827 64,885,494 1,275,963
Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
nvestment in subsidiaries - - 3,450,540 -
Permanent differences 286,767 1,452,823 498,117 (526,660)
Tax losses utilised (10,484,258) - (1,725,497)  (1,231,687)
Prior period tax recognised in current year (149,756) - (4.890) -
(835,468) 6,667,650 67,103,764 (482,384)

Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax asset
has heen recognised.

27. Discontinued operations

(28,964,687)

(30,751,260}

Wynberg Pharmaceuticals Proprietary Limited and Sekunjalo Health and Medical Commodities Proprietary Limited were

sold on 31 August 2016.

Profit and loss

Revenue
Expenses

28. Auditors’ remuneration

Fees

4,467,411
(2,978,766)

1,488,645

741,618

856,777

105,000 157,994
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28. Cash generated from operations
Profit before taxation 33,970,639 18,624,382 231,733,907 4,557,009
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 1,959,192 1,216,178 2,119 2,137
Loss {profit) on saie of assets 13,677 (550,718) - (541,888)
Profit on discontinued operations (11,168,929) - - -
Profit on foreign exchange - (8,750) - -
Income from equity accounted investments (310,475) (8,767) - -
Dividends received - - (4,277,726)  {5,171,249)
Interest received - investment 3,540,417 (1,812,486) {794,250) (195,011)
Finance costs 2,852,309 8,032,071 8,206,023 7,626,969
Fair value adjustments (14,470) {28,203) (231,694,655) (4,145,318)
impairment loss 85,010 469,330 11,610 806,958
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals 8,530 512,760 - -
Movements in provisions (2,013,340} (3,559,165} (32,628) 20,765
Depreciation included in cost of sales 113,447 - - -
Changes in working capital:
Inventories 967,307 (731,811} - -
Trade and other receivables 15,010,044 (5,604,538} {2,301,652) 846,096
Trade and other payables (13,715,619} 3,520,284 492,076 (2,181,153}
Deferred income (8,604,5668) (6,042,069} - -

22,693,171 14,028,498 1,344,824 1,645,315

30. Related parties

Relationships
Ultimate holding company

Subsidiaries

Joint venture

Fellow subsidiaries

Associate

47

African Equity Empowerment Investments Limited

Saratoga Software Proprietary Limited
Sekunjalo Medical Services Proprietary Limited

Health System Technologies Proprietary Limited
Digita! Matter Proprietary Limited

World Wide Creative Proprietary Limited
Afrozaar Consulting Proprietary Limited

Exare HST Proprietary Limited

Premier Fishing SA Proprietary Limited

esp Afrika Proprietary Limited
African Equity Empowerment Investments Properties
Proprietary Limited
Wynberg Pharmaceuticals Proprietary Limited

Sekunjalo Health and Medical Care Proprietary

Limited

Sekpharma Proprietary Limited

Emergent Energy Proprietary Limited
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30. Related parties {(continued)
Related party balances

L.oan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties
Aftican Equity Empowerment investments Limited
Health System Technologies Proprietary Limited
Sekpharma Proprietary Limited

Sekunjalo Health and Medical Commodities Proprietary
Limited

Whynberg Pharmaceuticals Proprietary Limited
Sekunjalo Medical Services Proprietary Limited
Saratoga Private Equity Proprietary Limited

Amotuints included in Trade receivable (Trade
Payable)} regarding related parties

Sekpharma Proprietary Limited

African Equity Empowerment Investments Limited
Exaro HST Proprietary Limited

Health System Technologies Proprietary Limited
Premier Fishing SA Proprietary Limited

Surplus funds invested with holding company
African Equity Empowerment Investments Limited

Related party transactions

Interest paid to (received from} related parties
African Equity Empowerment Investments Limited
African Equity Empowerment Investments Limited
Wynberg Pharmaceuticals Proptietary Limited

Administration fees paid to (received from) related
parties

African Equity Empowerment investments Limited
Health Systems Technology Proprietary Limited
African Equity Empowerment Investments Limited

Commission paid to (received from) related parties
African Equity Empowerment Investments Limited

Sales

Sekpharma Proprietary Limited

Exarc HST Proprietary Limited
Premier Fishing SA Proprietary Limited

Purchases
Premier Fishing SA Proprietary Limited
African Eguity Empowerment Investments Limited

Compensation o prescribed officers
Key management

Dividends received
Sekunjalo Medical Services Proprietary Limited
Saratoga Software Proprietary Limited

(67,792,788)

(118,564)

(762-)

57,000
4,702,927

(388)

(294,504)

(631,579)
5,615,103

(160,755)
(1,255,538)
(41,280)

28,763,551
3,860,825

23,889,034

48

(76,967,433)

15,111,248

{TSé)

29,845
3,477,389

(730,438)

1,928,720

{621,063}

4,722,114

(56.308)

10,067,023
70,536

24,849,446

(67,710,129)
(212,228)
{118,564}

30,799

5,615,103

54,290

8,206,023
(37,491)
(494,666)

(5,491,263)
(6,023,390}
(63%,579)

1,218,369

(3,000,000)
(1,277,726)

(76,960,367)

(23,276)
15,111,248
74,001

2,067,081
23,698

(56,06{3)

3,527,651

616,305

7,626,969
(16,305)
(166,454)

3,323,318
(6,407,446)
(621,053}

842,230

(4,000,000)
(1,171,249}
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30. Related parties (continued)
Compensation to directors and other key
management
Directors fees and short-term benefits - A. Wolmarans - - 1,218,369 842,230
Directors fees and short term beneifts - Group 23,880,934 24,849 446 - -
23,889,934 24,849,446 1,218,369 842,230

31. Risk management
Financial risk management

The group holds financial instruments fo finance its operations and to manage the financial risk that arises from these
operations. The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liguidity risk. Risk management is carried out by the group under policies
approved by the board.

Liquidity risk

The group’s liquidity risk is a resuit of the funds available to cover future commitments, The group manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. African Equity Empowerment Investments Limited
has subordinated their loan and gives support to the group which reduces the liguidity risk of the group.

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.

The table below analyses the group's financiat liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at

the balance sheet to the confractual maturity date. The amounts disclesed in the table are the confractuai undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Group

At 31 August 2016 loss than 1 Between 1 and Between 2 and Over 5 years
year 2 years 5 years

Other financial liabilities 277,431 - - -

Trade and other payables 8,072,378 - - -

Loans from group companies 13,545,891 13,545,891 40,637,673 “

At 31 August 2015 Less than 1 Between 1 and Between 2 and Over 5 years
year 2 years 5 years

Other financial liabilities 281,760 - - -

Trade and other payables 27,766,381 - - -

Loans from group companies 9,325,992 13,545,891 13,545,891 40,637,673

Company

At 31 August 2018 Less than t Befween 1 and Between 2 and QOver 5 years
year 2 years 5 years

Trade and other payables 120,097 - - -

l.oans from group companies 13,624,076 13,624,076 40,692,769 -

At 31 August 2015 Lessthan 1 Between 1 and Beiween 2 and Over 5 years
year 2 years S years

Trade and other payables 128,752 - - -

Loans from group companies 9,377,175 13,624,076 13,624,076 40,692,769
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31. Risk management {(continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter-party to a financial instrument will fail o discharge an obligation, and cause the
company to incur a financial loss.

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments, trade debtors and loans to
group companies. The company only depasits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to
any one counter-party.

The company ulilises the services of ABSA Bank Limited and First National Bank, of which the credit ratings are as follows:

Moody's Ratings Standard & Poor’s Ratings

ABSA Group ABSA Bank Lid FirstRand Bank Lid
Long-term Aal.za zahA- BBB-
Outlook - Stable Negative

Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these
ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk controt assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking
into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or
external ratings in accordance with fimils set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to
retail customers are settled in cash.

The Group is also potentially subject to concentrations of eredit risk in its accounts receivable. Gredit risk with respect to
receivables is limited due to the number of debtors comprising the Group's customer base. Although the Group is directly
affected by the financial condition of its customers, management does not believe significant credit risks exist at 31 August
2016, Generally, the Group does not require collateral or other securities fo support its accounts receivable,

Loans to group companies are managed at group fevel by the group treasury function. Regular reviews of subsidiary cash
flows and loan repayments are monitored on an on going basis. Advances and repayments are assessed against pre
arranged terms. Where there are any deviations, this is brought to the attention of the group treasury function and the
company's board of direclors.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument Group - 2016 Group - 2015  Company - Company -
2016 2015
Cash and cash equivalents 33,561,766 22,185,700 112,738 633,491
Trade and other receivables 32,412,131 58,998,757 6,167,135 3,865,483
Other financial assets 4,711,306 3,487,495 2,757,553 2,499,996
Loans to group companies 2,092,656 3,765,465 30,799 2,090,779

Foreign exchange risk

Management has set up a policy which requires the company to manage their foreign exchange risk against their functional
currency. The company is required to hedge its entire foreigt exchange risk exposure. To manage its foreign exchange risk
arising from fulure commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities, the company uses forward contracts.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity's functional currency.

The group was exposed to both US Dollars and British Pounds during the year. At year end, only a US Dollar balance
existed and was restated.

Foreign currency exposure at balance sheet date

Liabilities
Current payables, USD 100,024 (2015 : USD 786,644) 1,449,141 10,308,811 - -

50




Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited
{Registration number 1996/014461/06}
Annuatl Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2016

Notes to the Annual Financial Statementis

Group Company
Figures in Rand 2016 2015 2016 2015
34. Risk management (continued)
Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign items were:
usD 14.4880 13.1048

At 31 August 2016, if the currency had been 10% higher or lower against the US dollar with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been R 100,660 higher or lower {2015 R 194,356), mainly as a resuli of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of US dollar-denominated trade payables.

The group reviews its foreign currency exposure, including commitments on an ongoing basis. The group expects its foreign
exchange contracts to hedge foreign exchange exposure.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fiows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate or currency risk), whether the changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

Post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease as a result of gains/losses on equity securities classified as at fair value
through profit or loss. Other components of equity would increasefdecrease as a result of gains/losses on equity securities
classified a available for sale.

32. Tax paid

Balance at heginning of the year (704,813} (1,510,755} - -
Current tax for the year recognised in profit or loss (6,527,481} (5,894,436} - -
Disposal of subsidiaries 419,986 - - -
Balance at end of the year (699,088) 704,813 - -

(7.511,396) (6,700,378} - -
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33. Financial assets by category
The accounting policies for financial instiruments have been applied {o the line items below:
Group - 2016
Loans and Fair value Total
receivables  through profit
or loss -
designated
L.oans to group companies 2,092,656 - 2,092,656
Trade and other receivables 32,412,131 - 32,412,134
Cash and cash equivalenis 33,561,766 - 33,561,766
Other financial assets 4,711,306 - 4,711,306
72,777,859 - 72,777,862
Group - 2015
Loans and Fair value Totat
receivables  through profit
or loss -
designated
Loans to group companies 3,765,465 - 3,765,465
L oans to shareholders 36,427 - 36,427
Other financial assefs - 3,487,495 3,487,495
Trade and other receivahles 54,915,343 - 54,915,343
Cash and cash eguivalents 22,185,700 - 22,185,700
Other financial assets 3,487,495 - 3,487,495
84,390,430 3,487,495 87,877,925
Company - 2016
Loans and Fair value Total
receivables  through profit
or loss -
designated
Leans to group companies 30,799 - 30,799
Investments in subsidiaries - 82,992 457 82,802,457
Trade and other receivables 3,022 888 - 9,022,888
Cash and cash equivalents 112,738 - 112,738
Other financial assets 2,757,553 - 2,757,553
11,923,978 82,992 457 94,916,435
Company - 2015
Loans and Fair value Total
receivables  through profit
of loss -
designated
Loans {o group companies 2,080,779 - 2,080,779
Investments in subsidiaries - 76,248,382 76,248,382
Trade and other receivables 3,681,291 - 3,681,291
Cash and cash equivalents 633,491 - 633,491
Other financial assets 2,499,096 - 2,499,996
8,905,557 76,248,382 85,153,932
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34. Financial liabilities by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:
Group - 2016
Financial Total
liabtlities at
amortised cost
Loans from group companies 67,729,455 67,729,455
Other financial liabilities 277,431 277,431
Trade and other payables 8,072,378 8,072,378
76,079,264 76,079,264
Group - 2015
Financial Total
liabilities at
amortised cost
l.oans from group companies 77,055,456 77,055,456
Other financial liabilities 281,760 281,760
Trade and other payables 27,766,381 27,766,381
105,103,597 105,103,597
Company - 2016
Financial Total
liabilities at
amortised cost
Loans from group companies 68,120,380 68,120,380
Trade and other payables 675,924 675,924
68,796,304 68,796,304
Company - 2015
Financiai Total
liabilities at
amaontised cost
Loans from group companies 77,446,845 77,446,845
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35. Segmenial report
20186 Health Care Information Total
Technology
Revenue
External sales 6,654,969 215,660,706 222,387,675
Segment results
Operating profit / (loss) 17,185,267 25,198,458 42,363,715
Included in segment results :
Profit/lLoss from equity accounted 310,475 - 310,475
investments
Depreciation and amortisation 465,399 1,665,236 2,030,635
Administration fee paid - 5,459,640 5,459,640
775,874 7,024,876 7,800,750
Carrying value of assets - 107,131,107 107,131,109
Carrying value of liabilities - {90,027,994) (90,027,094}
Capital expenditure - 2,965,872 2,965,872
2015 Health Care information Total
Technology
Revenue
External sales 6,654,968 208,711,779 215,366,748
Segment resulis
Operating profit / {{oss) 17,185,257 25,198,458 42,383,715
Included in segment results :
Depreciation and amortisation (465,399)  {1,665,236) (2,030,635)
Administration fee paid {3,323,318) (465,978}  (3,789,296)
(3,788,717)  (2,031,214)  (5,819,931)
Carrying value of assets 18,218,895 100,542,079 118,760,874
Carrying value of liabilities (84,215,276) (48,559,110} (132,774,386)
Capital expenditure 22,487 2,123,294 2,145,781
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Figures in Rand 2016 2015 2016 2015

36. Fair value information

Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets, financial liabilities and non-financial assets measured at fair value in the statement of financial position, are
grouped into three levels of fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observabilily of significant inputs to

the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted unadjusted prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities that the group can access at measurement
date.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The following tabie shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financiat assets and financial liabilities including their levels in
the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair
value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Levels of fair value measurements

Level 3

Recurring fair value measurements

Assets Notes

Investments in subsidiaries at fair value 6
Investments in unlisted subsidiaries - - 301,782,202 78,942,379

Financial assets designated at fair value through 10
profit or loss
Cadiz Life Endowment 1,129,373 985,000 - -

Total 1,129,373 985,000 301,782,202 78,942,379

There were no fransfers of assets and liabilities between Levels 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
Reconciliatiocn of assets and Habilities measured at level 3
Note(s) Opening Gains/losses Sales Closing
balance recognised in balance
profit or loss

Company - 2016

Assets

Investments in subsidiaries at fair value 6

Investments in unlisted subsidiaries 78,942,379 231,694,654 (8,854,831) 301,782,202
Total 78,942,379 231,694,654 {8,854,831) 301,782,202
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Company - 2015

Assets

Investments in subsidiaries at fair value 6

Investments in unlisted subsidiaries 74,797 060 4145 318 - 78,942 378
Total 74,797,060 4,145,318 - 78,942,378

Gains and losses recognised in profit or loss are included in fair value adjustments on the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Financial Instruments measured at cost for which a fair value is disclosed

Financial assets that are not measured at fair value, namely frade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, foans
receivables and other financial assets are categorised as loans and receivables. it has been concluded that the carrying
amount of these assets approximate their fair value,

Financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value, namely loans, trade and other payables and other financial
liabilities are categorised as other fiancial liabilities. it has been concluded that the carrying amount of these
liabilities approximate fair value.

Information about valuation techniques and inputs used to derive tevel 3 fair values

Investments in subsidiaries

The value of investments in subsidiaries is determined using a discounted cash flow technique. A capital asset

pricing model is used in which the present value of expected cash flows of the subsidiary are determined. The expected cash

flows are determined by considering the current and planned operational activities of each subsidiary. The following rates were
used in the valuation modet:

Revenue growth rate: 5% - 15%
Terminal growth rate: 4% - 10%

Weighted average cost of capital: 15% - 35%
Specific risk premium: 1% - 5%

The potential effect of using reasonably possible aternative assumptions in the valuation, based on a change in the most
significant input by 1% while holding all other variables consiant, is shown in the following table:
Profit after tax

1% increase 1% decrease

Beta (91,472,666) 320,973,805
Weighted average cost of capital (27,479,852) 34,221,069
Specific risk premium (27,479,852) 34,221,069
Terminal growih rate 63,033,870 8,479,307

Valuation processes applied by the Group

The fair value calculations of Investments in subsidiaries are performed by the Group's finance depariment and operations
team, on a yearly basis. The valualion reports are discussed with the Board of Directors in accordance with the Group's
reporting pelicies. and operations team, on a quarterly basis.
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37. Business combinations subsequent to financial year end before reporting period

On 1 September 2018, the Group acquired 51% of the voting righis of Kalula Communications Proprietary Limited
("Headset Solutions") for a consideration of R 14,000,000 with a cash portion of R 4,700,000 payable on the effective date
and the balance settled with an issue of Sekunjalo Technology Solutions Limited shares. The Company is involved in
headsets and communication devices which enhances the Group’s strategy to diversify its IT portfolio.

On 1 Oclober 2016, the Group concluded the acquisition of 57% of the voting rights of Puleng Technologies Proprietary
Limited ("Puleng") which resulted in the IT division obtaining control over the company. Puleng is involved with software
development which complements the other IT businesses.

The Board is of the view that good synergies will arise from these acquisitions which will provide scale for the IT division as
we expect to double the revenue in 2017.

The Group is unable to guantify the revenue, profit or loss related to the above mentioned acquisitions at the acquisition
date due to the business integration with these acquired companies.

Due to the impracticality of the acquisitions close to financial year-end, the fair values of the acquired assets and liabilities

are provisional. Additionally, the uncertainty and nature in calculating the warranty and other provisions will be finalised
during the measurement period.
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Group Company
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Continuing operations
Revenue
Sale of goods 20,871,291 45 484,004 - -
Rendering of services 104,495 457 177,135,634 6,654,969 7,028,499
20 215,366,748 222,619,638 6,654,969 7,028,499

Cost of sales
Opening stock (432,894) (514,778) -
Purchases (148,021,197) {151,953,198) - -
Cost of manufactured goods - (1,302,237) - -
Closing stock - 432,894 - -

(148,454,091} (153,337,319) - -
Gross profit 66,912,657 69,282,319 6,654,969 7,028,499
Other income
Recoveries 26,505 627,793 - -
Sundry income 2,128,030 740,897 - -
Gain or foss on recognition of investments - {118,341} - -
Reversal of prior year overprovisions - - (2,879,820) -
Other income - 578,095 - -
Movement in warranty provision 1,116,182 - - -
Reversal of impairments - 436,309 334,451 436,300
Commission income - - 5,615,103 -
Dividends received 22 - - 4277726 5,171,249
Interest received 22 3,431,211 1,812,486 794,250 195,011
Gains on disposal of assets 3,609 550,718 100 541,888
Profit and loss on exchange differences 110,974 10,5822 - -
Fair value adjustments 23 14,470 28,203 231,694,655 4,145,318
income from equity accounted investments 310,475 8,767 - -
Profit on sale of subsidiaries 11,168,929 - - -

18,310,385 4,675,449 239,836,465 10,489,775
Expenses (Refer to page 59) (42,839,327) (47,301,315}  (6,551,504)  (5,334,296)
Operating profit 21 42,383,715 26,656,453 239,939,930 12,183,978
Finance costs 25 (8,413,076)  (B,032,071)  (B8,206,023) (7,626,969)
Profit before taxation 33,970,639 18,624,382 231,733,907 4,557,009
Taxation 26 (835,468) 6,667,651 54,851,638 (482,384)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 34,806,107 11,956,731 176,882,369 5,039,393
Discontinued operations (1,488,645) - - -
Profit for the year 33,317,462 11,956,731 176,882,369 5,039,393
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Group Company

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2016 2015 20186 2015
Operating expenses
Accounting fees 306,715 256,193 - -
Administration and management fees 5,458,640 3,789,295 5,481,263 3,323,317
Advertising 1,908,699 1,700,842 - -
Auditors remuneration 28 741618 656,777 105,000 157,994
Bad debts 1,382,660 2,449 564 - -
Bank charges 182,408 183,898 1,379 2,730
Cleaning 29,629 42,257 - -
Commission paid 193,489 4,192,222 - -
Computer expenses 492 831 617,643 34,276 10,470
Conferences 161,394 066,699 “ -
Consulting and professional fees 048,683 1,266,128 - 20,250
Consumables 87,408 100,978 - -
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 2,030,635 1,685,508 13,729 809,095
Discount allowed 209 - - -
Donations 163,881 443,730 - -
Employee costs 14,264,015 13,375,993 602,672 843,230
Entertainment 420,614 417,270 - -
Equipment under R 7,000 70,444 120,949 - -
Fines and penalties (73,016) 254,678 - -
Gifis 15,527 35,663 - -
Guarantee expense 71,966 216,404 - -
Hire 7,293 4,635 - -
IT expenses 490,522 376,817 - -
Insurance 242,128 470,294 70,127 57,635
Lease rentals on operating lease 4,710,904 4,117,112 2,318 -
Legal expenses 360,573 686,506 187,730 5,135
l.icence fees - 58,434 - -
Magazines, books and periodicals 526 1,268 - -
Motor vehicle expenses 182,502 171,772 - -
Municipal expenses 307,948 494,416 - -
Office equipment 146,091 452,945 - -
Petrol and oil 223 57,075 223 884
Placement fees 429,594 636,093 - -
Postage 49,310 86,369 5283 1,172
Printing and stationery 149,198 333,302 2,977 43,463
Profit and loss on exchange differences 1,117,676 1,954,078 - -
Profit and loss on sale of assets and liabilities 17,286 - - -
Relocation expenses 119,804 33,826 - -
Repairs and maintenance 183,748 210,828 - -
Secretarial fees 1,416 19,424 - 13,324
Security 157,593 167,194 - -
Staff welfare 533,762 381,010 - -
Storage charges 785 - - -
Subscriptions 464,494 422 340 24,196 22,434
Telephone and fax 1,324,196 1,240,760 7,731 7,882
Tenders 7,989 13,823 - -
Training 532,940 507,553 2,600 15,281
Travel - local 1,566,863 1,483,125 - -
Travel - overseas 864,614 147,625 - -

42,839,327 47,301,315 6,551,504 5,334,296
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

As a niche markel enterprise, Sekunjale Technology Solutions Limited and its subsidiaries provides effective information
communication technology (ICT) business solutions and services that enhance business performance in government and
corporate customers. The group comprises husinesses that are leaders in their respective niche markets, have solid client
bases and achieve high levels of sustained organic growth,

The group offers a range of ICT solutions well suited to the healthcare industry, hospital information and laboratory systems,
pharmacy information systems. This is backed by the necessary professional services such as consulting, technical
expertise, professional services, system integration, engineering of bespoke solutions, business intefligence, software
development and engineering. Included in this sector is mobile inspection management, mobile field service, property
inspections, franchise evaluations, cloud solution archilecture, mohile banking and commissioning. Digital marketing, digital
content redistribution for the publishing and media industry as well as commercial, industrial and agricultural solar PV
sofutions are included in this sector,

The group companies have international partnerships with leading technology suppliers, including Intersystems Corporation,
JAC (UK), Microsofl and Fujitsu Computers,

BUSINESS MODEL,

The group’s business model continually seeks innovative ways to sustain its existing businesses by adapting to changing
environments through their acquisitions and new business development approach where at its core; there is a social
contract for responsible business belween it and society.

This enables the group to add value through their extensive expertise and networks, while promoting an entrepreneurial
culture within its various business unit structures and employees. Their businesses become efficient on a sustainabie basis
with some of the businesses working on a retainer-based and consultancy services approach while generating revenue and
cash flow. As part of their services to new investors they provide sclutions and ancillary services.

With the group’s risk management approach and the impact of changing markets, competitors and the economic
environment, management is constantly aware of how they can improve sustainability through constant change. In addition,
they consistently broaden their market opportunities by diversifying services in order to spread the risk.

PROSPECTS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The group is very successful at retaining its client base in the long ferm and utilising those as a foundation for future
business growth. These strategies have paid dividends and are a cost-effective way of providing short to medium term
source of income and growth and remain an integral part of their core strategy to develop new opportunities.

Acquiring and developing their own intellectuat property is a key strategic focus area, will ensure better margins with
resulting profitability. Increasing revenue is generated through the launch of their own products and services into local and
international markets. By extending their footprint into the South African Public Health and Private Sectors and replicating
their successes in other parts of Africa will ensure the sustainability of the group’s businesses. As a medium term
opportunity provide implementation services to first-world countries such as Australia and the United Kingdom.
Opportunities are actively pursued to increase their markel reach through partnerships and are culturally aligned with
complementary businesses.

in the long term, the group needs to ensure that it remains relevant in ils various sectors by investing in research and
development. Providing niche products and services into selected African countries is seen as a major opportunity. They
intend to grow their renewable energy sofutions provider business and to position the company as one of the leaders of
renewable energy solutions providers in the country.

GOVERNANCE

The group complies with all sound governance and regulatory functions and has had no reported fraud or deviations in the
application of these principles in the current period. The continued training and exposure of employees to the ever-changing
regulatory environment and regulations of the Companies Act ensure that all employees are fully informed of their
raesponsibiiities.
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Group Company

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND MONITORING

The group manages its businesses strategically following a process, which includes an annual review of past performance,
products/services, markets as well as a review of the internal and external environments. This review is followed by the
setting of strategies and action plans, aimed at both growth and sustainability in current markets.

in addition to the annual strategic planning exercise, quarierly reviews of strategy achievement and how changes in the
internal and external environments may positively, or negatively, affect each business unit, are held. Strategies and actions
are adjusted o ensure the growth and sustainability of each business units,

In this manner, the group can monitor its financial performance against strategies set for the year and evaluate this against
the key performance areas of management and key employees. Through this process, the sustainabllity of operations is
ensured.

The Board of each business unit in the group has an approved formal delegated authority schedule, which informs
executive management of the necessary fevels of approval for all key business transactions. In this way, the group ensures
that there is a senior manager or the Board itself reviewing each key business transaction/initiative to ensure that key
business activity is aligned with the group strategy, is lawful, will contribute to the Company's suslainability and will not be
harmfuf to any stakeholders and/or the environment.

ECONOMIC SUSTAINABILITY

The group aims to deliver sustainable returns fo all of its stakeholders. Trusted relationships with their key clients and
increasing the awareness of their brands as innovative and high-guality offerings, positions the group well for continued
growth. By increasing the value of their range of activities will result in reducing the cost of products and materials
purchased infernationally and focus on internally developing and acquiring a set of core products.

A measure of the value created by the group is the amount of value added by its wide range of activities to the cost of
products and materials purchased. Trusted relationships with key customers and increasing awareness of their brands as
innovative and high-quality offerings position them well for new opportunities and continued growth.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The various business units in which the group operates is not considered to make particularly heavy demands on the
natural environment in which their community stakeholders live. Management is consistently mindful of reducing CO,
emissions, reducing paper usage and appropriate electronic waste disposal in operating decision-making.

The group has an investment in a renewable energy solutions provider, Emergent Energy (Pty) Ltd, to contribute towards
reducing South Africa’s consumption of and reliance on fossil fuels and improving ils foolprint across its value chain.
Beyond the inherent benefils of delivering a carbon-free energy production solution, they continuously look at improving
their footprint across the whole value chain with specific care being given to internal procedures and practices.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
The group subscribes to a sustainable approach in conducting its business.

For the group, corporale citizenship goes beyond legislative compliance. it recognises the rights and responsibilities of
businesses within a broader societal context and reinforces the mission of the group to implement a social contract
between business, government and civil society.

The group is well aware of the critical role that a business has to play in the upliftment and development of the previously
disadvantaged majority. It is for this reason that they give back to the communities in which they operate by contributing to
the following initiatives:
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Implementation of recruitment policies that encourage the recruitment of appropriately skilled, previously disadvantaged
individuals;

Development of staff within the various business units and to grow human capital;

Impiementation of tearnerships to assist with elevaling the skilf levels of previously disadvantaged individuals;

Financial and in-kind contributions to the development of various early childhood development, youth centres and adult
teacher training;

Organisational involvement and sponsorship of start-up workshops held annually;

Partnership with the Universily of Cape Town's Commerce Faculty to provide relevant, updated course content for their
second-year students;

Participation on the University of the Witwatersrand Information Systems industry advisory board to contribute to the industry
relevance of university course content;

Investment in a number of emerging, black-owned technology enterprises at an enterprise development level through
business incubation programmes,

Learning programmes within the digital space;

Partnership with the Cape Peninsula Universily of Technology to provide mentorship and collaborate with previously
disadvantaged individuals.

The group is an active member of SETA and strongly believes in internal training and development. During the year under
review, staff attended seminars and training programmes in their relevant areas to further grow and develop.

With the changes in the new BBBEE Codes, each business unit continually strives to meet and exceed the benchmarks set
by the BBBEE codes of good practice.

KEY CHALLENGES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Key challenges
At present, their strategic focus is aimed at overcoming the following poiential challenges:

Employee skills and e This remains the key chalienge, as experience and reputation are critical
retention factors in influencing the market.
¢ High levels of demand and international portability of skills, together with

inadequate maths and sclence education al school level ali contribute to a
high degree of scarcity of key technical skills.

o Limited resources of high-quality personnel make employee mobility one of
the highest risk factors.
Technology o ICT products are evolving and investment is required to develop and acquire

new innovative products to remain relevant when compared against
competitors’ and meeting the ever-increasing client expectations.

® The high-tech nature of the industry requires that companies establish a
presence in the market and present themseives as stable, professional and
sustainable entities,

e This is achieved through the gquality of information, the professionalism of
their employees and the ability to deliver new products to the markets.
« Ensuring that technology remains relevant for end-users, addressing areas

such as cloud computing, mobilily and, at the same time, keeping abreast of
integration into increasingly sophisticated medical equipment modules.
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External environment s The increasing price of energy both for travel and electrification is an
external environment trend that drives demand for mare energy efficient ICT
hardware and the use of collaboration tools. These factors are a
consideration in all of their ICT hardware suppliad and the operations of their

husinesses.

® The current decline on health ICT spending by Government is a challenge,
which is mitigated by developing opportunities in other sectors.,

@ The general economic slowdown has created pressure on rates for services,
putting margins under increasing pressure.

o Many large companies are insourcing their digital marketing function.

e The industry being open to both local and international companies is highly

competitive and the biggest challenge is competing with companies who
have critical mass and funding.

Employees and o The business units focus on the development of individuals.
community o Creates opportunities for scarce skill areas for the broader community.
Economic conditions ® The general economic slowdown has created pressure on rates for the
services, hence putling margins under increasing pressure.
° Some clients operate in the Petro-chemical sector and the depressed oil
price has impacted capital expenditure on new projects.
® Renewable energy systems require a large investment upfront with most of
the solutions being imported — the volatility of the Rand also impacts
operations.
. The price of electricity has a direct influence on savings which the
renewable energy systems are able to deliver.
o Legal requirements regarding power generation is constantty evolving and

could be a threat on the industry.

Risks

Risk management is integrated into each business unil's management process. Each business unit maintains a risk
register, which is compiled and maintained by the executive management, with the risk status and execution of planned
actions being reviewed monthly, Executive management is responsible for the identification, classification and management
of all operational risks.

Significant strategic and going-concern risks can be identified at all levels in each business uni{. However, the responsibility
for directing the actions necessary to manage these risks is the responsibility of the Board of directors of each business
unit. Strategic and going-concern risks are reviewed al the quarierly Board meetings and the executive directors are
charged with the execution of approved risk management actions.

in the year under review, although a number of identified risks could not be avoided, the pre-planned management
strategies for these risks were successful in mitigating or avoiding the severity of the impact on the respective companies
and overalt Group financiat performance.

Risk identification Impact on business Response
» Acquire products and ° Continuous dependence on e Thelr strategy is
intellectual property third-party suppliers for tocomplement the software
software products offering by:

— acquiring controlling stakes
in other companies with
appropriate software; and
— internally developing their
own iP
e Negotiate Rand based pricing
with international suppliers
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® Slow-down of public }e No new growth opportunities |e Pursue expansion on the
sector in the public sector in the range of products and
expenditure on T short term customers
+ Dependence on major ® Potential reduction in ° Pursue extension of client
customers revenue base by:

— expansion into Africa; and
— acquiring other companies

+ Loss of major project at a with an existing client base

key dlient e Diversified project mix and
® Employee loss customer base resulting in
risks being mitigated through
tong-term support and
maintenance agreements
Impact on market ° Polential loss of new ° Tactical items implemented
positioning through lower business during the financial year and
BBBEE rating as new o Limited access to new strategic planning for further
codes are implemented opportunities improvement in 2017 taking

into account the impact of the
new BBBEE codes

. Focus on charter
requirements to retain or
improve current rating

° Key technical e Product modules, o Recruit senior staff to
resources implementation support and learners and drive delivery in
product growth and stability parallel
e Employees ° Relationships may be o Investigate share option
retention affected together with scheme

delivery and associated
contractual obligations may
be compromised

STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT

The group recognises the importance of constant engagement with stakeholders. The principal stakeholders for the group
are shareholders, employees, customers and suppliers.

A key element of their strategic planning process is the documenting of the values and the culture of their business units,

Stakeholder-oriented values include:

honesty and integrity;

passion for customers;

quality in all that we do;

development and respect for employees:
accountabilily and commitment; and
protecting/conserving the environment.

The group has various procedures in place with regard to stakeholder managemeni. These are summarised as follows:

[Stakeholder [Relationship [Expectation |Expectation managed |
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Group

Company

Shareholders

Owners of the
business

o

Integrity
Shareholder
wealth creation
Ethical business
pracfices
Regular
communication

Sound corporate governance
rules are implemented in the
business

provided by the
Company to the
communities

to biack
businesses to help
them grow and
succeed

Provide assistance
to the community

Customers Recipients of ° Timely and high | Employ formal project
services rendered quality management methodalogy
by the Group professional ° Best practice processes to
delivery of quality ensure professional, timeous
goods and delivery of the contracts, in
services budget and to the anticipated
® Compestitive pricing guality standards
° Innovation and ) Direct contact with major
strategic advice cusiomers locally and
internaticnally
° Innovative solutions and strategic
advice
e Active management of key
accounts
e Compliance with [aws,
regulations and legislation
Suppliers Procurement of e Ethical business ° Ensure that business is
goods and services relationships conducted with other reputable
° Commitment to businesses as per the Code of
BBBEE policies Ethics
o Prompt payment | Ensure that they support the
policy on BBBEE
° Negotiate, manage and conclude
contracts
» Timeous payment
° Ensure compliance with agreed
contractuat terms relating to
intellectual property ownership
Communities  |Assistance is " Provide assistance |e Assist enterprise development

beneficiaries with regard to
strategy, training, marketing and
skills transfer

Involvement in community
projects
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Employees Employees of the |e Develop human Pravident Fund ICT Group Risk
Company capital Insurance (linked to the provident
e Foster growth, fund)
productivity and Employment equity policies and
well-being of the procedures
employees Skills development policies and
a Sustainable procedures
employment A disciplinary code
® Competitive salary Employee retention programmes
® Stimulating, Clear KPls for performance
cutting-edge review and development
project work planning
Regular open forums for
discussion
Open door policy for
communication at all levels
Regulatory Comply with ® Compliance with Training of employees
authorities regulations, best Jaws and responsible for compliance with
practices, laws and regulations of regard ta various regulations by
legislation authorities authorities
Internal control procedure to
ensure compliance
Immediate corrective action
noted in the event of findings
raised by authorities
Participation in industry working
groups
Mesting with industry regulators
Government Comply with laws, |e Compiiance with Comply with all the laws of South
regulations and laws and Africa with particular emphasis
legistation regulations of on the labour and tax laws
authorities
REMUNERATION

The group aims fo be a competitive and attractive employer in the marketplace. Remuneration and benefits are important
drivers, as are career opporiunities, personal development, culture and values, leadership, company performance and
reputation. The group complies with applicable laws, agreements and industry standards on working hours and
compensation.

The group has various incentive schemes in place in order to retain talented and experlenced staff.

Detailed information about the group’s business model, stakeholders, risks and governance is available on the
website at www.aeei.co.za.
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